
Joint Task Force Meeting Agenda 
1-31-2018, 6:30 p.m.  
Bethel City Council Chambers 
300 State Highway, Bethel 
Orutsararmuit Native Council and City of Bethel Council 

Posted on December 14, 2017 at City Hall, AC Co., Post Office, and ONC Building. 

______________________________ 
City Clerk’s Office 

D 

Orutsararmuit 
Native Council 

Walter Jim 

Henry Hunter Sr. 

Thaddeus Tikiun 

Connie Sankwich 

Robbert Hoffman 

Robert Lekander 

Raymond Watson 

City Council 

Rick Robb 

Fred Watson 

Leif Albertson 

Mark Springer 

Naim Shabani 

Thor Williams 

Mitchell Forbes 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
II. ROLL CALL

III. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD
IV. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
V. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES 

a) 5-25-2016 Meeting Minutes
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Multi-Purpose Building Lease Agreement (ONC)
VII. NEW BUSINESS

a) City of Bethel Transit System Financial Support (COB)
b) Pinky’s Park Boardwalk Lighting Financial Support (COB)
c) Tax Increases (ONC)
d) Water and Sewer Rate Increases (ONC)

VIII. COMMENTS
IX. ADJOURNMENT

1

Page 2

Page 38
Page 40

Page 48



JOINT TASK FORCE MEETING MINUTES 

ONC CONFERENCE ROOM 

5/25/2016 @ 6:30 P.M. 

I. Call to Order: By Walter Jim at 6:32 p.m. 

II. Roll Call: ONC:  Walter Jim, Henry Hunter, Thaddeus Tikiun, Glen

Watson, Gregory Hoffman, Robert Lekander, Raymond Watson. CITY

COUNCIL: Rick Robb, Byron Maczynski (6:39 p.m.), Leif Albertson

(absent), Chuck Herman (absent), Zach Fansler, Nikki Hoffman, Alisha

Welsh.

Note: Nikki Hoffman stated that she had a conflict of interest on items:

VI.a; VII a,d,e., being the director of Senior Services.

III. People to be Heard: Gene Peltola, Pat Samson and Calvin Cockroft

IV. Approval of Agenda: Thaddeus made a motion to approve the agenda,

2nd by Byron- agenda established.

V. Approval of Meeting Minutes:

a) January 13, 2016 Meeting Minutes (ONC): Glen made a motion to

approve the meeting minutes, 2nd by Rick Robb, minutes approved

(6:46 pm).

VI. Unfinished Business:

a) Lease Agreement for the ONC Multi-Purpose Building and plan for

Building prior to lease term (City of Bethel)

-Rick Robb stated that the original plan of the Multi-purpose building

was to use it as a recreational facility/bowling alley. He stated that

the City Attorney drafted a new lease stating no requirement for

recreational use, but public purposes/activities. Gene suggested that

the item be tabled until the ONC council has reviewed it. Byron made

a motion to table the proposal, 2nd by Glen, item was tabled.



b) Establishing a Multi Lateral Committee for collaboration efforts on 

community and regional issues (City)  

-Gene stated that he contacted organization(s) like AVCP, AVCP RHA, 

BNC, YKHC and ONC to put together a working task force. The first 

meeting is set up for June 3, 2016. He concluded that he will contact 

the city on the next meeting. Byron posed concerns of not involving 

the City. Rick Robb suggested that he would like to see city 

involvement; with involvement it will make it more expansive.  Nikki 

inserted that she meant to Draft a letter, but has not got around to it.  

VII. New Business: 

a) Terminating the Memorandum of Agreement for the Public Transit 

(City). 

Thaddeus made a motion to table the MOA, 2nd by Greg; passed 7:08 

p.m. 

b) ONC’s 17 acre subdivision (ONC) 

i. Road Right of Way 

- It was concluded that ONC will work with the planning 

commission and move ahead with the subdivision. Anna stated 

that ONC would first need access and a plan declaration and 

attain a letter of concurrence from BLM. Discussion on road 

main entrance and secondary entrance was for safety was 

talked about.  Walter stated that he would get a hold of 

ANTHC to help with the water and sewer.  

ii. BMC 17.040 

- This topic of discussion was in conjunction with the above 

listed (Road Right of Way) 

c) IRR Roads 

i. Swansons/Riverfront road 

ii. 5th Avenue 

iii. Board walk lights and (Willows cut 50 feet) – added to agenda 

-The transportation department, headed by Pat Samson 

proposed dedicated funds to the city to set gravel on above 

mentioned roadways. The forecasted amount is 89 thousand 



dollars.  The city will visit this topic on their next scheduled 

meeting.  

d) Senior Center donation 

- ONC board members requested a donation from the City of 50 

thousand; the city council again decided to visit this subject on their 

next meeting.  

e) Multi-Purpose Building (This item was tabled) 

i. MOA 

ii. Land 

VIII. Comments: 

-Raymond suggested to the city to hire more police so that there can be 

a quicker response to distress calls. Walter stated that there needs to be 

funds to increase the patrol within the streets. ONC will be looking into 

the possibility of applying to the Justice Department for establishing a 

Tribal Police Department.  

IX. Adjournment: Henry made a motion to adjourn, 2nd by Glen, meeting 

adjourned at 8:32 p.m.  



f L 

7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 21 37 

BOOK 1:3 PAGE~ 
GROUND LEJ\SE 

THIS GROUND LEASE is made and entered into at Bethel, 

Alaska, in th~ Fourth Judicial District, on this ./!i~ay of 

,Jr:~~~#:/;~~ 1985, by and between the City of Bethel, hereinafter 

ref erred to as ''Landlord", and Orutsararmuit Native Council, 0 ~ 
hereinafter referred to as "Tenant". 

Landlord and Tenant, for and in consideration of the 

keeping by the parties of their resp~ctive obligations 

hereinafter contained, as well as for $1.00 and other valuable 

considerations simultaneou3ly .in hand paid with the execution and 

deliver'l of this Tease, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

aqree a~ •ollows: 

ARTICLE I 

Leased Premises 

1. Grant of tease. Upon the terms a~d conditions 

hereinafter aet forth, and in consideration of the payment from 

time to time by Tenant of the rents hereinafter set forth and in 

con3ideration of the continuous prompt performance by Tenant of 

each and every one of the covenants and agreements hereinafter 

contained, to be kept and performed by Tenant, Landlord does 

hereby lease, to Tenant and Tenant does hereby lease of and from 

Landlord the following described premises, in the Bethel 

Reco~ding District, Fourth Judicial District, State of Alaska: 

See Exhibit "A" attached her-eto and, PY this 
reference thereto, incorporated herein as 
though fully set forth herein, 

her~inafter referred to as the "leased premises~. 

Supporting Documentation for 
Unfinished Busienss Item A

2



7-17-00; 2 '. \0PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 3/ 37 

() 
BOOK_ 4:-3 PAGE .3o2 

2. Conditions. This Lease is ~ikewise mad~ subject to 
.;. .' ti 

the following: 

(a) Conditions, restrictions and limitations, if 

any, there be now appearinq of record; 

(b) Zoning ordinances of any municipality, any 

organize~ or unorganized borough, the state of Alaska 

and any other governmental body now existinq or which 

may hereafter exist by rQason of any legal authority 

during the life of this Lease: 
. . 

(c) Tenant has leased the leased premises as 

herein provided after an examination thereof and of the 

subsurface conditions beneath the sam~ and, except as 

otherwise herein expressly provide<l, without any 

representation on the part of Landlord, Tenant ass~mes 

the sole responsibility for the conditlon, operation, 

maintenance and management of the leased premises: 

and, 

(Q) : The proper pecforrnance by Tenant of all the 

te~ms and · conditions contained in this Lease. 

ARTICLE II 

Term 
L,' .• Jl-

ThP. term of this Lease shall commence on the/~ day of 

) 
1 

/ 1 ~-hi 14A " · / /2/:JJR.h:(,,Uz·, 1985, and terminate on the 3U"''aay of ~~~,;;) 

2020, both nates inclusive, unless sooner terminated as 

hereinafter provioed. 

Gt:'ound t e:, -;e - 2 
3



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 4/ 37 

. : ~ 

. i·!' 

BOOI< 'l-3 PAGE~ 

ARTICLE !It 
,I• • ; I 

Rent. -· 

1. Annual Rentals. The rent which Tenant agrees to pay 

to Lannlord is Sl.OO per year for the term of this Lease ana any 

extension hereof. All rent payments are to be paid annually and 

in advance, except as otherwise agreed in writing between the 

par.ties. Tenant shall ha"'1e the option of prepaying any or all 

rent due for the remaining term of this Lease. 

In the event Tenant ceases and discontinues its use of 

the leased premises as a bowling alley or similar recreational 

fac~lity, the rent due · under this lease shall increase to an 

, am~.unt equal to thQ annual fair market rent-al rate for the 

unoerlying property. This annual fair ·market rental r.ate shall 

·.:·be paid on a. monthly basis and .. shall be subject to adjustment on 

a· · t."10-year period. 

If Landlord and Tenant are unable to agree on the fair 

market rental rate for the underlying property, t-he fair market 

rental rate shall be determined by a committee of three (3) 

appraisers, one (1) of whom will be chosen by Landlord, one (1) 

of whom will be chosen by Tenant, and one (1) of whom will be 

chosen by mutual agreement of the two (2) previously-selected 

appraisers. The cost of this appraisal shall be shared equally 

by Landlord and Tenant. 

2. Place of Payment. Rent shall be payable at such 

place as Landlord may specify in writinq from time to time, and a 

place once specified as the place for the payment of rent shall 

be ~uch until it shall have been changed by written notice given 

Ground Lr - 3 

4



7-17-00; z:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # S/ 37 

. : 

BOOI< ~.3 PAGE .3:i 

unto Tena~t by Landlord, in 

the giv~~ of notice. 

the manner hereinafter prescribed for ... - .r .' 

( 
3. Net Lease. It is the purpose and intent of Landlord 

and Tenant that the rent hereinabove provideo to be paid to 

Landlord by Tenant be absolutely net to Landlord, so that this 

tease shall, except as hereinafter provided to thQ contrary, 

yield net to Landlord the rent as hereinabove provided, and that 

all costs, expenses and obligation~ of every kind and nature 

whatsoeve~ relating to the leased premi3es, or any improvements 

thereon, whi~h may arise or become due during the term of this 

Lease, shall be paid by Tenant and that Landlord shall be 

innemnified and saved harmless by Tenant frqm and against the 

same. Nothir:t<J herein contained shall be deemed to require Tenant 

to pay or discharge any liens or mortgages of ~ny character 

whatever which may hereafter be placed upon the leased premises 

by the afiirmative act of Landlord. 

ARTICLE IV 

Additional Construction by Landlord 

The Landlord re~erves the right during the term of this 

lease to construct additional improvements upon the property 

leased to Tenant. These additional improvements must be of 

compatible structure and compatible use to the uee by Tenant of 

the leased premises. The Landlord shall be allo~ed to adjoin to 

exi~~ing w3lls of ~~e improvements currently existing on the 

r:-.~mis£=s .=n~ neinq leased to Tenant. Any such new improvement 

con~tructed by Landlord must not interfere with the access to 

Tenant's improvements. Landlord also agrees to provide Tenant 

Ground Lease ·· 
5



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 6/ 37 

BOOK 4-3 p /\ ~r: 32· i-\VL_ 

with additional replacement property equal to the amount utilized 
I: ; ; I 

by the improvements and associated parking should the 

improvements and associated parking unreasonably restrict the 

parkin~ and premises needed by Tanant. 

In the event Landlord elects to proceed with the 

construction of additional improvements ~n the leased premises, 

copies of plans for the proposed improvements will be submitted 

to Tenant at least thirty days before the enterinq into of any 

contract for construction of the improvements for the purpose of 

allowing Tenant time to review the impact of the proposed 

improvements upon the Tenant's use of the property·. In the event 

Tenant shall object to the proposed improvements based on 

incompatibility of use or structure, interference with access, or 

failure to provide additional. needed land for parking or 0th.er 

uses, Landlord will not proceed with the enterin9 into of any 

contract for construction prior to the ~ithdrawal of Tenant's 

objection, which withdrawal will not unreasonably be withheld • 

. ARTICLE V 

Payment: of Taxe:a 

Tenant's Obligat:ions. Except as hereinaft~r 

provided in Article v, Tenant convenants and agree5 with Landlord 

that Tenant shall timely pay, all taxe5, assessments, water and 

se~er rents, rates and charges, transit taxes, charges for public 

utilities, excises, levies, licenses and permit fees and other 

go~ernmental charges of any kind and nature whatsoever which at 

any time aurinq the term of this Lease may become due. 

Ground Lerir::: - 5 
6



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 11 37 

() 
BOOK_ 4-3 PAGE .33l -

2. nbliqations Altered. Nothing herein contained shall 
JI• ~ • • 

require Tenant to pay municipal, state· or ·federal income taxes 

assessed against Landlo~d; municipal, state or federal capital 

levy, estate, succession, inheritance or transfer taxes of 

Landlord: o~, corporate franchise taxes imposed upon any 

corporate owner of the fee of the leased premises. 

3. Method of Payment. The parties agree that Tenant 

shall pay the taxes and other charqes as enumerated in this 

A~ticle of the Lease and ehall upon Landlord's requests deliver 

official receipts evidencing such payments to Landlord at the 

place at \o/hich rental payments are required to be made. If, 

however, Tenant desires to contest the validity of any tax or tax 

c~aim, .. Tenant .• 1ay do so without being . in de.fault hereunder as to 

T~nd~t's obligat~un to pay taxes, .- provided· Tenant gives · Landlord 

11o~ice of T1:nant's intention to do so and, if required by 

Lanolord, at the sole option of Landlord, furnishes Landlord with 

a bond, with a surety made by a a~rety company qualified to do 

business in the state of Alaska, or pays ca5h to a recognized 

escrow agent in Alaska, one-and-one-half (l-1/2) times the amount 

of the tax item or items intended to be contested, conditioned to 

pay such tax or tax items when the validity thereof shall have 

been determined. 

4. Tenant's Default. In the event that Tenant shall 

fail to make any of the payments required in this Article, 

Landlord may, at its option, pay the same, and the money so paid, 

including reasonabla attorneys' fees and other actual costs, 

together with interest on all such amounts at the rate of ten 

Ground Laa{: · - 6 
7



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 8/ 37 

(D 
BOOK /f-3 PAGE 3.= 

percent (10%) per annum, or 5UCh oth~r lower rate which may be 
... ,.. 

IP.gal undi:ir any applicable usury la1.1s/ shall b~ repaid by Tenant 

to Landlord upon the demand of Landlord, and the payment the~eof 

may be collected or enforced by Landlord in the same manner as 

though such amount were an installment of rent specifically 

required by the terms of this Lease. 

5. Pro-ration. The foregoinq notwithstanding, the 

parties hetdtO unnnrstand and aqree that th?. taxes, if any, for 

Lhe ri~s- ~oe 1ast years of the term herein shall b• pro-rated 

proportionately between Landlord and Tenant. 

ARTICLE VI 

Pro-ration of Certain Assessments 

1. puring Initial Term. Any assessment for sewer, 

water, public utilities or other governmental assessments 

increasing the value of the reversion (the term "reversion" shall 

be deemed to mean Landlord's interest after the eria of this 

Lease), or tending to increase the value of the reversion, shall, 

if falling within the first twenty-five (25) years of the term of 

this Lease, be paid by Tenant. 

2. Pro-ration Schedule. Any such assessment which ia 

assessed or which commences to benefit the reversion during the 

twenty-sixth (26th) through the thirty-fifth (35th) year shall, 

at the sole option of Tenant, be pro-rated aa follows. In the 

year in which the following number of years of the term remain, 

T~nant ana Landlord shall ~ach pay the percentage of the 

assessment listed under their respective names below. 

Ground Leas0 - 7 
8



7-17-00; z:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 ;; 9/ 37 

(;)BOOK '+.3 PAGE 33. 

Ye 1 r3 

~~mai_~ 

, I") 

9 
8 
7 
6 
5 
4 
3 
2 
l 

Tenant to 
Pay ,;. 

90% 
80% 
70% 
60% 
50% 
40% 
30% 
20% 
10% 

0% 

ARTICLE VII 

Landlord to 
; ' Pay 

10% 
20% 
30% 
40% 
50% 
60% 
70% 
80% 
90% 

100% 

Landlord'a Inte~est Not Subject to Mechanics• Liens 

1. No Lien. All persons to whom these presents may 

come are put on notice of the f~ct that Tenant shall never, under 

any circumstances, have the power to subject the interest of 

Landlord in the lea5ed premises ·to aoy· mechanics' or 

rnaterialrnan'a lien or liens of any kirid, unless a specific 

provision to the contrary, authorizing in specific te"t-ms the 

creation of such lien or liens, is else~here herein contained. 

2. Release of Lien. Tenant covenants and agrees with 

Landlord that Tenant will not permit or suffer any lien or claim 

of any kind (except for a mortgage created pursuant to Article 

KIV hereinafter contained) to be filed or claimed against the 

interest of Landlord in the leased premises durin9 the 

continuance of this Lease. If such lien be claimed or filed, it 

shall be the duty of Tenant, within thirty (30) days of such 

claim having been filed among the public records of the Bethel 

Recording District, Fourth Judicial Dist~ict, State of Alaska, to 

cau~~ the leased premises to be relea5ed from such claim, either 

Gl:'ound Lease - 8 
9



7-17-00; 2'.10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 10/ 37 

": · 

BOOK '-1-3 PAGE~ 

by payment, by the posting of bond or by, the payment unto the 
)· . ; ' 

court of the amount necessary to rel i' e'~e an·d release the leased 

premises from such claim, or in any other manner which, as a 

matter of law, ~ill result in releasing Landlord and the title of 

Landlord from such claim. 

ARTICLS VIII 

Rights and Re~edies of Landlord 

1. Governing Law. All of the rights and remedies of 

the respective parties hereto shall be governed by the provisions 

of this instrument and by the laws of the state of Alaska, as 

3uch,. laws relate to the respective .righfs and duties of landlords 

and tenants. 

2. Rights of Landlord. During the continuance of this 

Lease, Landlord shall have all ~ights and remedies which this 

Lease and the laws of the state of Alaska as5ure to it. All 

rights and remedies accruing to Landlord 3hall be cumulative~ 

that is, Landlord may pursue such rights as the law and this 

Lease afford it in whatever order Landlord desires and the law 

permits, without being compelled to resort to any one (1) remedy 

in advance of any other. 

ARTICLE IX 

Indemnification of Landlord Against Liability 

1. Indemnification by Tenant. Except as otherwise 

herein provided, Tenant covenants ana agrees with Landlord that, 

during the entire term of this Lease, Tenant will indemnify, 

Ground :· ;:ase - l) 

10



7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 11/ 37 

.. 
·::;::" (Li 

BOOK'-tf_3_PAGE 33· 

defend and save Landlord har~less against any and all claims, ... 
• ; I 

debts, demands o~ obligations which may be made against Landlord 

or against Landlord's title in the l~ased premises, arising by 

reason of or in connection with the negliqence or any alleged act 

or omission of Tenant or any person claiming by,, through or under 

Tenant~ and if it becomes necessary for Landlord to defend any 

action seeking to impose such liability, Tenant will pay Landloca 

all costs of court and attorneys' feas incurred by Landlord in 

effecting such defense, in addition to any other sums which 

Landlord may be called upon to pay by reason of the entry of a 

jud~ment aqainst Landlord in the litigation in ~hich such claim 

is a55erted. 

2. Insurance.. From the time when thia .'L·eaae commences, 

Tenant will cause to be written a policy or policies of ine~rance 

in the form qenerally known as public liability and/or owners•, 

landlord and tenant'policies in5uring Tenant against any and all 

claims and demands made by any person or persona whomsoever for 

injuries receiven in connection with the operation and 

maintenance of the leased premises and the improvements and 

buildinqs located on the leased premises. Each class of ~hich 

policies shall have been written ~ithin limits of not less than 

$500 1 000.00 for damages incurred o~ claimed by any one (1) person 

for bodily injury or otherwise, plus $100,000.00 for damages to 

property, ana for not less than $1 million for damages incurred 

or claimed by mo~e than one {l) per5on for bodily injury or 

otherwise, plus $100,000.00 for damaqes to property. All such 

policies shall name Tenant and Landlord, as their respective 

Ground r · "!e - 10 
11



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 12/ 37 

(j/ BOOK 11-3 PAGE 3.3 

inter.Posts may appear, as the pecsons ~ssured by such policies, 
,.·. 

• • ; I 

and th~ oriqinal or a duplicate original of each such policy or 

policies shall be delivered by Tenant to Landlord promptly upon 

the writing of BUCh policies, together ~ith adequate e~idence of 

the fact that the premiums are paid. 

3. Term. Tenant shall procure such policies of 

insurance for periods of froro one (1) to five (5) years, as 

Tenant shall elect, and shall procure renewals thereof from time 

to time at least twenty (20) days before the expiration of any 

similar policy then existing, and if Tenant fails to do so, 

Landlord may procure any such insurance for such oeriods as 

Landlord shall elect, and Tenant shall, on demand, reimburse 

Landlord for all outlays for such i~surance. 

4. Termination of Leasehold. On the expiration of the 

final term qranted hereunder, Landlord shall pay to Tenant· the 

amount of the then-unearned premiums on all insurance then 

carried by Tenant covering or affecting only the leased 

premises. Tenant shall neither do nor suffer anything to be done 

whereby any of the insurance required by the provisions of this 

~rticle shall or may be invalidated in whole or in part. 

ARTICLE X 

Fire and Hind Damage Insurance 

1. Tenant's Obligation. Tenant covenants and agrees 

with Landlord that from and after the time when this Lease 

commences, Tenant will keep insured any and all buildings and 

imp!ovements upon the leased premises against all loss o~ darnaqe 

Ground · - 11 

12



7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUT5ARAMUIT ;5432639 # 13/ 37 

.·. : . 
~; ~ . : : . 

BOO!< 'f..3 PAGE--3J 

by fire and windstorm, and what is qenorally tarmed in the 
; . ' I 

insurance trade as "extended coveraqe"·, which s~id insurance will 

be maintained in an amount which will be sufficient to prevent 

any party in interest from being or becoming a co-insurer on any 

part of the risk, which amount shall not be les~ than eighty 

percent {80%) of the full insurable value (the term "insurable 

value" shall be deemed to mean the cost of replacement of the 

structure), and all such policies of insurance shall include the 

name of Landlord as one (l) of the parties insured thereby and 

shall fully protect both Landlord and Tenant, as their respective 

interests may appear. In the event of the destruction of said 

buildings or improvements by fire, windstorm or other casualty 

for which insurance shall be payable and as often as such 

in3urance money shall have been paid to Landlord and Tenant, said 

sums so paid shall be deposited in a bank account of Landlo~d and 

Tenant in a bank located within the state of Alaska, designated 

by Tenant, and shall be made available to Tenant for the 

reconstruction or repair, as the case may be, of any building or 

buildings dmaged or destroyed by fire, windstorm or other 

casualty for ~hich insurance money shall be payable, and shall be 

paid out by Landlord and Tenant from said joint account from time 

to tirna on the estimate of any reliable architect, licensed in 

the state of Alaska, having jurisdiction of such reconstruction 

and repair, certifying that the amount of such estimate is beinq 

applied to the payment of the reconstruction or repair and at a 

reasonable cost thereof; provided, however, that it first be made 

to ~ppear to the satisfaction of Landlord that the total amount 

Ground r.. :e - 12 13



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUT5ARAMUIT ;5432639 # 14/ 37 

BOOK tf-.:~ PAGE...:22 

of money necessary to provide for th~ recon5truction or rapair of 
... 

any buildin9 or buildings aestroyed or injured as aforesaid, 

accordinq to the plan~ adopted therefor, has been provided by 

Tenant for such purpos?. and its application for 5uch purpose is 

assured. Tenant shall have the option of not rebuilding the 

damaged or destroyed improvements and should Tenant determine to 

not rebuild, all insurance proceeds shall belong to Tenant so 

long as Tenant removes all improvements and returns the surface 

of the leased premises to a buildable condition. If Tenant 

elects to r~build or repair, Tenant shall rebuild and repair the 

same in such a manner that the builaing or improvement so rebuilt 

and repaired, and the personal ~roperty so replaced· or repaired, 

shall be of the same or higher value as the said buildinq or . 

improvement and the personal property upon· the leased premises 

prior to such damage or destruction, and shall have the same 

rebuilt and ready for occupancy within fifteen (15) months from 

the time when the loss or destruction occurred. The fifteen-

month period for reconstruction shall be enlarged by delays 

caused without fault or neglect on the part of Tenant by acts of 

God, strikes, lock-outs or other conditions (other than matters 

of finance) beyond Tenant's control. 

2. Delivery of Polici~s. The originals of all such 

insurance policies shall be delivered to Landlord by Tenant, 

alon9 with the receipted bills evidencing the fact that the 

premiums therefor are paid, but nothing herein contained shall be 

construed as prohibiting Tenant from financing the premiums where 

the terms of the policies are for three (3) or more year5, and in 

Gro:: .. d r · se - l" 14



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT 
;5432639 # 15/ 37 I 

BOOK tf-3 PAGE..33. 

such event, the receipts shall evidence .it to be the fact that 
,I• • ' ' 

the installment premium payment or payments are pain at or before 

their respective maturities. However, where there is a mortgage 

on the leasen premises, created pursuant to the provisions 

contained in Article XIV of this Lea~e, and if, under the terms 

of such mortgage, it is obligato~y upon Tenant to cause the 

originals of the policies to be delivered to the mortgagee, then 

Tenant shall deliver to Landlord duplicate certificates of such 

policies. The policies or duplicate certificates thereof, as the 

case may be, shall be delivered by Tenant to Landlord at least 

ten {10) days prior to the effective date of the policies. 

3. Effect of Mortgage Subrogation. Al1 of the 

provisions herein contained relativ~ · to.the disposition of 

payments f~om insurance companies are subject to the fact that if 

any rnortga9ee holding a mortqage created pursuant to the 

provisions of Article XIV hereof elects, in accordance with the 

terms of such mortga9e, to require that the proceeds of the 

insurance pe paid to the mortgagee on account of such mo~tqage, 

then such payment shall be made. 

4. Damaqes! Insurance Proceeds~ Joint Bank Account. It 

is agreed that any excessive money ~ecei~ed from insurance 

remaining in the joint bank account after the reconstruction or 

repair of such building or buildings, if there be no default on 

the par~ of Tenant in the performance of the covenants herein, 

shall b~ ~~id ~o Tenant. 

5. Direct Repayment. The foregoing notwithstanding, in 

the' event the insurance proceeds arP. the ~mm of $25, 000. 00 or 

Ground L·- ·;e - 14 
15



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432539 # 15/ 37 

. . 
. ! :; . ~. 

BOOK 4-3 Pi\ GE.£ 

less, then such proceeds 3hall be paid directly to Tenant without .,. , i. 

the necessity of creating the joint b~nk account as hereinabove 

set forth, and Tenaot shall use such funds to make the 

replacement or repairs as required hereunder. 

ARTICLE XI 

Assignment: 

1. Written Assignment; Filinq. This Lease is not 

assignable without the express written consent of Landlord. Any 

approved assignment shall not relieve Tenant of any obligations 

to Landlord under this Lease. Consent of the Landlord to any 

assignment of this Lease shall not be unreasonably withheld. 

2. Notice. Landlord and Tenant each he~eby covenant 

and agree with the other that they wilt·, within twenty (20} days 

after written noti-ce shall have been given one by the other 

requiring a statement of the status of this Lease, give such 

statement truthfully and in writing, so as to show whether this 

Lease is in good standing, and if it is not, the particulars in 

which it is not, and failure within such period of twenty (20) 

days so to give such written reply shall constitute a 

representation that this Lease is in good standing, which 

representation any person, within twenty (20) days after the 

expiration of said twenty-day period, may rely upon as being true 

and correct. Notice and the subsequent reply shall be deemed 

given and the time shall begin to run when, respectively, such 

notice and the consequent reply are deposited in the United 

States certifiea mails, ~ith sufficient postaqe prepaid thereon 

,:- ::>und L r·.• SP - 15 
16



7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUT5ARAMUIT ; 5 432635 # 17/ 37 

:!:· ·· 
·~ , :;: :' 

BOOK 'f 3 PAGE 34 

Lo carry th~m to th~ir addres3ed do~tinations, and they shall be 
.·· 

addressed to Landlord and Tenant at thP. places ano in the manner 

pre~cribed as being the places and the manner for giving 

notice. Such notice shall contain, verbatim, all of the language 

set forth in this Section 2. 

ARTICLE XII 

Condemnation 

F.minent Domain: Cancellation. It is understood and 

agreed that if, at any time during the continuance of this Lease, 

the lea5ed p~emises or the improvements o~ building or buildings 

located thereon. or any portion thereof, be taken, appropriated 

or condemned by reason of eminent domain, there shall be auch 

division of the proceeds and awards in such condemnation 

proceedings and such abatement of the rent and other adjustments 

made as shall be just and equitable under the circumstances. If 

Landlord and Tenant are unable to a9ree upon what division, 

annual abatement of rent or other adjustments are juet and 

equitable within thirty (30) days after such award has been made, 

then the findings in dispute shall, by appropriate proceedings, 

be submitted to a court having jurisdiction of the subject matter 

of such controversy in the Fourth Judicial District of the State 

of Alaska for its decision and determination of the matters in 

dispute. !f the legal title to the entire leased premises be 

wholly taken by condemnation, this Lease ahall be canceled and 

only the obligation to apportion the proceeds shall survive. 

Gr ound Le :. : - 16 
17



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 ;; 18/ 37 

BOOK Lf_":j PAGE 3LJ-I 
ARTICLE XIII .. . ' 
Construction 

.. Jilding Not Mandatory. This LeaBe is executed with 

the understanding and agreement that Tenant is not obligated to 

construct any builnings or improvements upon the leased premises, 

but if Tenant desires to construct, r2construct or add to any 

building or buildings on the leased P.rernises, or any portion 

thereof, such building or buildings will be commercial buildings 

and must be done with the consent of and with approval of plans 

by.Landlord. Said consent and approval shall not be unreasonably 

withheld. 

2. Tenant to Bear Expenses. If and when Tenant desires 

to construct, reconstruct or add to any building, Tenant 

covenants and aqrees that the building or buildings must be 

constructed and paid for wholly at the expense of Tenant. 

3. Financial Commitment. Befor~ commencing the 

buildinq, Tenant agrees that it will have arranqed for financing 

so that at all times there will he available to Tenant sufficient 

funds to pay fo~ the costs of construction of the proposed 

building or buildings. 

ARTICLE XIV 

Mortgage of Lea$ehold 

1. Right to Mortgage. In addition to other rights 

hereinafter provided, Tenant may not, without Landlord's consent, 

vhich consent shall not be unreasonably withheld, mortgage ite 

interest in this Lease, and not mortqage shall extend to or 

Ground L~ase - 17 

18



1-11-uu; z: 1Ul-'M;UHUJ:iAHAMUI I ;5432639 # 19/ 37 

\~;: 

BOOK 'f3 PAGE 31.J-:. 

affect the fee, the raversionary intP.~est or the estate of 
. • I• 

Lanalora in and to any lana or buildinqs or improvements now or 

hereafter er~cted on the leas~d premises. 

(a) No mortgaqe of this LQase or assignment hereof 

shall he binding upon Landlord in the enforcement of ite 

rights under this Lease, nor shall Landlord be deemed to 

have any notice thereof, unless and until a fully 

conformed copy of each instrument effecting such 

mortgage or assignment, in form proper for recording, 

shall have been delivered to Landlord. 

(b) If the holder of any such mortgage shall qi~e 

Landlord, before any default shall have occurred in this 

Lease, a written notice containinq the name and post 

office address of each holder, Landlord shall thereafter 

qive to such holder a copy of each notice of default by 

Tenant at the samP. time as any such notice of default 

shall be given by Landlord to Tenant. The copy of such 

notice of default shall, in each instance, be deemed 

duly given to the holder of such mortgage when deposited 

in the United States certified mail, with sufficient 

postage prepaid thereon to carry it to its addressed 

destination, and it shall be addressed to the holder at 

the place and in the manner prescriben as being the 

place and the manner for giving notice. 

(c) Landlord will accept performance by the holder 

of any such mortgage of any term of this Lease required 

to be perfot:lTled by Tenant, with the same force and 

Ground Lease - 18 19



1-11-uu; ~:1u~MiUHUl~AHAMUI I ;5432639 # 20/ 37 

BOOK Lt3 PAGE 3Lf 

eff2ct. as thouqh performc:!<~ hy 'fcrnant, if at the tim2 of 
,• ; I 

such performance, Landlord shall be furnish~d with 

evidence satisfactory to Landlord of the interest in the . 

leased property claimed by the person, firm or 

corporation tendering such performance or payment. The 

holder of such rnortgaqe shall have ten (10) days after 

rer.eipt uf any such notice of default ~ithin which to 

•ire """Y default in the payment of t:ent required to be 

paid under this Lease and a reasonable time within which 

to cure any other default. 

2. Riqht to Mortgage~ Mortgage Extension of Default. 

Tenant and every successor Tenant may assign its interest in this 

Lease only with Landlord's prior consent, which conaent shall not 

be unreasonably wi~hheld, provided that no other rnortga9~ is 

outstandinq at the time such mortgage is granted. If Tenant or 

any successor or assign ~hall mortgaqe this leasehold, then so · 

lonq as such mortgage shall remain in effect, the follo~ing 

provisions will apply: 

(a) There shall be no cancellation, surrender, 

acceptance of surrender or modification of this Lease 

without the prior written consent of the leasehold 

{b) Landlord shall, upon serving Tenant with any 

notice of default or any other notice under this Lease, 

simultaneously serve a copy of such notice upon the 

leasehold mortgagee, and no notice of such default shqll 

be deemed to have been duly given unless and until a 

Ground Lease - 19 20



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 21/ 37 

CJ) 
BOOK 1-3 PAGE 3'+' 

cocy the~eof h~s been so serve~. The mort~agee shall 
,. •.• ;.1 

· heriottpon have the same time ~ith'in vhich to cemedy er 

cause to be remenied the defaults complainea of as is 

allowed to Tenant, ano Landlord shall accept such 

pe~formance by o~ at the instigation of the mortqaqae as 

if such performance had been accomplished by Tenant. 

(c) For the purpose of this Article, no default on 

the part of Tenant in the performance of work to be 

performed or acts to be done or conditions to be 

remedied, which cannot reasonably be completP.o within 

the 9race period, shall be deemed to exist if steps 

shall, in good faith, have been promptly commenced to 

rectify the same and shall be prosecuted to completion 

with diligence and continuity. 

(d) Anything herein contained notwithstanding, 

while such leasehold mortgaqe remains in effect, if, 

before the e~piration of ten (10) days after the date of 

service of a notice to terminate this Lease for any 

reason whatsoeve~, the leasehold mortgagee shall have 

paid to Landlord all rent and shall have complied, or 

shall engaqe in the work of complyin9, with the 

requirements of this Lease, by reason of which default 

such notice has been sent, then Landlord shall not be 

entitled to terminate this Lease and any such notice of 

termination theretofore given shall be void and of no 

effect. 

Gi:-ouni.1 Lease - 20 21



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT 

... : · .. :. .. 

;5432639 # 22/ 37 

PAGE 31f:. 

(e) If Landlord elQcts t~ terminate this Lea~e by 
.,. . ; . 

reason of any default of Tenant, the leasehold mortgagee 

shall not only have and he subrogated to all rights of 

Tenant with reapect to curing such default, but shall 

also have the right to postpone and extend the specified 

date for the termination of this Lease, as fixed by 

Landl~rd in its notice of termination, for a period of 

~ot mor: Lhan six (6) months, provided that: 

{1) The mortgagee shall cure any then-

existinq default and, meanwhile, pay the rent and 

perform all of the other requirements of this Lease 

required to be performed by Tenant; 

(2) No further defaults shall accrue 

hereunder during such extended period~ and, 

(3} The mortgagee forthwith takes steps to 

acquire Tenant's interest in this Lease by 

foreclosure of its mortgage or otherwise. 

(f} The name of the leasehold mort~agee may be 

added to the "loss payable endorsement" of any and all 

in3urance policies requirea to be carried by Tenant 

hereunder. Subject to the provisions of any fee 

mortga~e, Lanolord will make available jointly to Tenant 

and to the leasehold mortgagee all insurance or 

condemnation proceeds to ~hich Tenant may be entitled 

hereunder for purposes of restoration of the leased 

premist?S. 

Gr,oun~ Lease - 21 
22



7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 23/ 37 

BOOK 43 PAGE 3% 
(q) Landlord, within t~n .(10) rtays after a requast 

... '. ; . 
i~ writinn by ~enant or the lea5ehold mortqagee, shall 

_ -~r~dh a written statement, duly acknowledged, that 

this Lease is in full force and effect and that there is 

no default hereunder by ·Tenant, or if there is a 

default, such statement shall specify the default which 

Landlord claims to exist. 

3. Termination; Assumption. In ease of the termination 

of this Lease by reason of the happening of any event of default, 

Landlord shall give notice thereof to any leasehold mortgagee who 

shall have notified Landlord of its name and address pursuant to 

the terms of this Lease, which notice shall be addressed to such 

leasehold mortgagee at the address last furnished to Landlord aa 

hereinabove provided. Landlord shall, on the written request of 

such leasehold mortgaqee made any time ~ithin thirty (30) days 

after the mailing of such notice, execute and deliver a new lease 

of the leased premises to such leasehold mortqagee, or its 

desiqnee or nominee, fo~ the remainder of the term of this Lease, 

at the rent and upon the covenants, conditions, limitations and 

agreements herein contained, provided that such leasehold 

mortgagee shall have paid to Landlord all rent and other charges 

due under this Lease up to and including the date of the 

commencement of the term of such new lease, together with all 

expenses, including reasonable attorneys' fees, incident to the 

~xecution and delivery of such new lease, but nothing herein 

contained shall be deemed to impose any obligation on the part of 

Landlord to neliver physical possession of the leased premise5 to 

Ground Lease - 22 23



7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 24/ 37 

BOOl< 'f.3 PAGE 311-1 

such leasehold mortgagee. Any ~uch aesiqnee or nominee of a 

leasehold mortqaqee shall be a co~poration qu~lifie~ to do 

business in the state of Alaska. No leasehold mortgagee ~hall he 

entitled to become the owner of this Lease by foreclosure, or by 

~ssiqnment in lieu of foreclosure, unless such leasehold 

rnortqa~ee, or its designee or nominee, shall first have delivered 

to Landlord an assumption agreement, executed in ~ecordable form, 

pursuant to which $UCh leasehold mortgagee, or a corporate 

oesignee or nominee of such leasehold mortgagee, assumes the 

performance of all of the terms, covenants and ~onditione of this 

Lease. 

ARTICLE XV 

Default. 

1. Effect of Default by Tenant. It: .is furthe·r 

covenanted and aqreed by and between the parties hereto that in 

case, at any time, a default shall be made by Tenant in the 

payment of any of the rents herein provided for upon the day such 

rent becomes due and payable and remains due and unpaid for a 

period of thirty days, or if Tenant shall fail to perform any of 

the other covenants of this r.ease by it to be KP.pt and performed 

it shall and may be lawful for Landlord, upon election, to 

declare the lease term ended (except in the case provided for 

herein in Article XIV in the event of a mortgage holder secured 

by the Lease) and to re-enter upon the leased premises and the 

building or buildings and impro~ements situated thereon, or any 

pa~t thereof or thereon, either with or without process of law, 

Tenant he~~by waiving any demand for possession of such leasea 

Ground Le~se - 23 24



7-17-00; 2'.10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 25/ 37 

.... 

BOOK 4·~3 

prP.mises and any nnd all building~ ana improvnments then situated 
.•. .· ; ; 

thereon, or Landlord may have such oth~r remedy as the law and 

this instrument may afford. Tenant covenant~ and agree~ that 

upon the termination of the lease term, at such election of 

Landlord or in any othe~ way, Tenant will surrender and delive~ 

up the leased premises peaceably to Landlord, or th~ agent or 

attorney of Landlord, immediately upon the termination of the 

lease term~ and if Tenant, its agent, attorney or tenants, shall 

hold such lea~ed premises, or any part thereof, one (1) day after 

the aarne should be surrendered according to the terms of this 

Lease, it shall be deemed guilty of forcible detainer of the 

leased premises under the statutes and shall be subject to 

eviction or removal. 

2. Landlord-Tenant Relationship Onlt~ The parties 

understand and agree that the relationahip between them is that 

of landlord and tenant, and Tenant specifically acknowledges that 

all statutory proceedings in the state of Alaska regulating the . 

relationship of landlord and tenant respecting collection of rent 

or possession of the premises accrue to the· Landlord hereunde~. 

3. Landlord's Remedies. Nothing herein contained shall 

be construed as authorizing Landlord to decla~e this Lease i~ 

default, however, where the default consists in the non-payment 

of rent, security, insurance premiums or taxes until such non-

payment, in violation of the terms of this Lease, shall have 

continued for thirty (30) days after the respective due dates for 

payment of such rent, security, insurance premiums and taxes, and 

\.The.re the alleged default consists ot some violation other than 

Ground Le~se - 24 25



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432539 # 25/ 37 

. ' :· 
.. ~: ~~~;: 

BOO!< tf3 PAGE 3'-lf-. 

the non-payment of rent, security, insurance premiums or tax~5, 
•'' 

Landlord may not declare this Leas<= in' default until such 

violation shall have continued for thirty (30) days after 

Landlord shall have given Tenant written notice of such 

V'i ola tions. 

4. Default Period. All nefault and grace periods shall 

be deemed to ~un concurrently and not conaecutively. 

ARTICLE XVI 

Repair Obligations 

Tenant covenants and agrees with Landlor~ that during 

the continuance of this Lease, Tenant ~ill keep in a good state· 

of repair any and all buildings, 'furnishings, fixtures and 

equipment ~hich are brought or constructed or placed upon the 

leased premises by Tenant, nor will Tenant suff~r or permit any 

waste or neglect of any building or other property to be 

committed, and that Tenant will repair, replace and reno~ate such 

p~operty as often a5 may be necessary in order to keep the 

buildings and othe~ property which are the subject matter of this 

Lease in good repair and condition. 

Tenant shall not permit the accumulation of ~aste or 

refuse matter or permit anything to be done upon the leased 

premises which would invalidate or prevent th~ orocuremant of any 

in5urance policies which may be at any time required. Tenant 

shall not obstruct or permit the obstruction of the street or 

sidewalk and shall keep the sidewalk and curb adjoining the 

leased premises clean and free of snow and ice. 

Ground Lease - 25 
26



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 27/ 37 

~s} 

BOOK 'f3 PAGE 35"0 

ARTICLE XVI X . 
,I• • • f .' 

Additional Covenants'of Tenant 

1. Legal Use. Tenant covenants and agrees with 

Landlord that the premises will be used for legal purposes 

only. 

2. Termination. Tenant covenants and agrees ~ith 

Landlord that at the termination of this Lease, Tenant will 

peaceably and quietly deliver possession of the leased premises 

and all improvements, including any furnishings, fixtures and 

equipment which Tenant may have brought, placed or constructed 

upon the premises pursuant to the provisions of Article XII of 

thi5 Leaae, to Landlord. 

ARTICLE XVIII 

Landlord•s Ri9ht of Entry 

Landlord and its agents shall have the right to enter 

upon the leased premises at all reasonable times to examine the 

condition and use thereof, provided only that such right shall be 

exercised in such a manner a3 not to interfere with Tenant in the 

conduct of Tenant's business on such leased premises; and if the 

leased premises are dama9ed by fire, windstorm or by any other 

casualty which causes the leased premises to be ex?osed to the 

elements, then Landlord may enter upon the leased premises to 

make emerge~cy repairs, but if Landlord exercises its option to 

Plke efuer ~nc repairs, such act or acts shall not be deemed to 

excuse Tenant from its obligation to keep the premises in good 

repair and Tenant shall, upon demand of Landlord, immediately 

G~ound rP.ase - ~n 
27



7-17-00; 2!10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 28/ 37 

BOOK_LJ._-3_PAGE 3 .5 

reimburse Landlord for the cost and expense of such emergency 
,I• ••• 

repairs. 

ARTICLE x:rx 

f"lisce1laneous 

1. Quiet Enjoyment. Tenant, upon payinq the rent and 

all other sums and charges to be paid by it as herein provided, 

and observing and keeping all covenants, warranties, agreements 

and conditions of thia Lease on its part to b~ keP.t, shall 

quietly have and enjoy the leased premises during the terms of 

this Lease without hindrance or molestation by Landlord. 

Landlord shall not encumber the lea5ed premises or permit the 

leased premis~s to be encumbered, except as Landlord is requi~ed 

to do so under the provisions of this Lease. 

2. Force Majeure. In the event that Landlord or Tanant 

shall be .delayed, hindered in or prevented from the performanc~ 

of any act required hereunder by reaaoo of the acts of God, 

strikes, lockouts, labor .troubles, inability to procure . 

materials, :ailure of power, restrictive government laws or 
. . 

"'..:qulatic . . ...ots, insurrect.ion, the act, failure to act or 

default of the other i;>at'ty,· war or other reasons beyond its 

control, then performance of such act shall be excused for the 

pP.riod of the delay and the perioo for the performance of any 

such act shall be extended for a period equivalent to the period 

of such delay. 

3. Further Assurance5. Either party shall, without 

charqe, at any time and from time to time hereafter, within ten . -
(10) days after the written request of the other, certify by 

Grounn · . !:le - 27 28



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 29/ 37 

BOOK )/3 PAGE 35, 

writtP.n instr.ument, duly-executed and acknowled~ed, to nny ,,. . . ;.· 

mortgagee or purchaser or proposed mortgagee or proposed 

purchaser, or any other person, firm or corporation 5pecified in 

such request: 

(a) As to whether this Lease has been supplemented 

or amended, and if so, the substance and manner of such 

supplement or amendment. 

(b) As to the validity and force and effect of 

thiB Lease, in accordance with its tenor as then 

constituted. 

(c) As to the existence of any default 

hereuridei:. 

(d~ As to the existence of any offsets, 

\01~n tet:'claims or defenses thereto on the part of such 

other party. 

(e) As to the commencement and expiration date8 of · 

the term of this Lease. 

(f) As to any other matters as may reasonably be 

30 requested. 

Any such certificate may be relied upon by the party who 

requested it and by any other person, firm or corpo~atioo to whom 

the same may be exhibited or delivered, and the contents of such 

certificate shall be bindinq on the party executin9 the same. 

4. Duplicates; Recordation. The parties ~ill at any 

time, at the request of either one, promptly execute duplicate 

originals of an instrumGnt, in recordable form, which will 

constitute e short form of lease, 3etting forth a description of 

Ground Lease - 28 29



1-11-uu; z:1u~M;UHUl~AHAMUI I ; 5 43 26 39 ;; 3 0 / 37 

. ::· c> 
BOOK 11-3 PAGE 353 

the le~sad premise~, the term of this Leaso and any other 
• • i I 

portions thereof, excepting the rental · provisions, as either 

party may request. 

5. Consent Not to be Unreasonably Withheld. Whenever 

Tenant requests any consent, permi35ion or approval which may be 

required or desired by Tenant pursuant to the provisions hereof, 

Landlord shall not unreasonably withhold or postpone the grant of 

such consent, permission or approval. If Tenant requests such 

consent, permission or approval and Landlord does not notify 

Tenant of it5 express disapproval thereof within forty-five {45) 

days afte~ the receipt of such request, setting forth its reasons 

therefor, such consent, permission or approval ahall be deemed to 

6. Right of First Refusal to Purchase. 

(a) Landlord agrees not to sell or grant options 

with r~spect to, or otherwise dispose of, the leased 

premises during the term of this Lease unless Landlord 

shall: 

{l) ttave received a bona fide arm's-length 

offer from an unaffiliated party for such sale or 

disposition~ 

(2) Have notified Tenant in writing of the 

identity and address of the offeror and all of the 

provisions of such offer~ and, 

(3) Afford to Tenant the prior OP,tion to 

purchase or to otherwis~ acquire the leased 

Ground T " - 29 
30



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 31/ 37 

·. : 

PAGE~ 

c~emises on the same provi~ion~ as those contained 
• "' .r I 

in the offer. 

(b) Such option shall be exercisable by written 

notice given within the thirty (30) days ne~t following 

the receipt by Tenant of Landlord's notice of such 

offer, which shall be given by Landlord within ten (10) 

days after receipt of such offer. If Tenant shall fail 

to exercise its option and if Landlord shall not 

thereafter sell or dispose of the leased premises 

pursuant to the provisions of such offer, the foregoing 

prohibition against sale or other di3poeition by 

Landlord shall continue in full force and effect and 

Tenant's foregoing option shall thereafter apply to any 

5ubsequent offer on the same terms as set forth 

hereinabove. 

(c) The notice provided in Section 7(b) 

hereinabove shall set forth therein the time of closing 

and a place of closing. The time of closing shall be 

designated in the notice of exercise, but not later than 

sixty (60) days after the qiving of such notice. 

(d) At such closing conference: 

(1) Tenant shall pay to Landlord (by good 

certified check or an official check of a bank or 

trust company) the applicable purchase P,rice~ 

{2) Landlord shall convey good and marketable 

~itle to the leased premi5es to Tenant, free and 

clear of all encumbrances and title defects othe~ 

Ground Lea Re - 30 31



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 32/ 37 

BOOK_4_.3~PAGE~ 

than those which arose at renant's request or by 
' • f I 

virtue of Tenant's tenancy~ and, 

(3) Landlord and Tenant shall execute any and 

all documents which may be necessary to effectuate 

such closing and the transfer of title contemplated 

hereunder. 

7. Federal Income Tax Deductions. Only Tenant shall 

have the right to take deductions on its tax returns ~ith respect 

to such buildings, ~tructures, improvements, changes, 

alterations, repairs, additions and installations and the 

depreciation thereof. 

B. Covenants Running With Land. All covenants, 

promises! conditions and obligation~ herein contained or implied 

by law are covenants running with the land arid shall attach and 

bind and inure to the benefit of Landlord and Tenant and their 

respective heirs, legal representatives, successors and assigns, 

except as otherwise provided herein. 

9. No Waiver. No waiver of a breach of any of the 

covenants in this Lease contained shall be construed to be a 

waiver of any succeedinq breach of the same covenant. 

10. Arrears. All arrearages in the payment of rent 

~hall ber :n .~rest from the date when due and payable at the 

rate of ten percent (10%) per annum, or such lower rate as may be 

legal unae~ any applicable usury laws, until paid. 

11. Written Modifications. No modification, release, 

discharge or waiver of any provisions hereof shall be of any 

Ground ~@ase - 31 
32



7-17-00; 2:10PM;ORUT5ARAMUIT ;5432639 # 33/ 37 

BOOK. 'f3 PAGE~ 

force, effect or value unless in writinq., signed by the party to 
·'· ' .. . ' 

be charged or its duly authorized aqent or· attorney. 

12. Entire Aqreement. This instrument contains the 

entire agreement between the parties as of this date and the 

execution hereof has not been induced by either party by 

representations, promises or understandinqs not exp~essed herein, 

and there are no collateral agree~ents, stipulations, promises or 

undertakinqs whatsoever upon the respective parties in any vay 

touching the subject matter of this instrument which are not 

expressly contained in this instrument. 

13. Notices. When either party desires to give not: ice 

to the other in connection with and according to the terms of 

this Lease, such notice shall be given· by ·certif.ied mail and it 

shall be deemed given when it shall have been deposited in the 

United States mails, with 5Ufficient postaqe prepaid thereon co 

carry it to its addressed destination, and such notices shall be 

addressed as follows: 

To Landlord·: 

To Tenant: 

City of Bethel 

P.O. Box 388 

Bethel, Alaska 99559 

Orutsararmuit Native Council 
P.O. Box 927 
Bethel, Alaska 99559 

Nothinq h~rein contained shall be construed as prohibiting the 

parties from changing the place at which notice is thenceforth to 

be qiven, but no such change shall be effective unless and until 

it shall have been accomplished by written notice given in the 

manne~ set forth in this Section. 

Ground Lease - 32 
33



7-17-00; 2'.IOPM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 34 / 37 

t:;;: .. bUUK 4-.!J PAGt .35 

14. Liability Continued. All references to Landlord 
.~ ' I 

and Tenant mean thereby the persons who, ·from time to timia, 

occupy the positions of Landlord and Tenant, respectively, 

although this shall not be construed as relieving a person of any 

liability incurred by them by reason of or in connection with 

their having been Landlord or Tenant at one time~ 

15. Use of Terms. As used herein, the singular 

includes the plural, the male gender includes the female and 

"mortgage", "mortgagor" and "mortgagee" includes deed of trust, 

t~ustor and beneficiary. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Landlord and Tenant have executed 

this Ground Lease the day and ye~r first above written. 

STATE OF ALASKA 

Fourth Judicial District 

CIT¥ OF BETHEL 

By,~<-/j~ 
It~ :1 Land~ord 11 

ORUTSARARMUIT NATIVE COUNCIL 

By:~~,J,_ Ita: v ..,.~I 
"Tenant•• 

) 
) ss. 
) 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this d.&1. day of J-.,,.l.v .... e.vl , 
1985, before me, the undersigneg, a Notary Public in and for 
Alaska, personally appeared ~ce u.Jr.•y 1.2 Ii<>+<' 1.A.-o .~·..V Sc . , to me 
~nown and known to me to be the C.....\....::.; 1 ""-4c..........,i of the 

)01~.:p'o~a'tian named in the foregoing instrument, and l,.J._ 
acknowledged to me that Le.. had, in L......:V official eapaci ty 
aforesaid, executed the foregoing instrument as the free act and 
deea of the said eorpo~atiQ~ for the uses and purposes therein 
stated. (.o....._ ......... ;j ~ 

Ground Lease - 33 
34



7-17-00; z:10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT ;5432639 # 35/ 37 

··: ·· ·· . •.'!;. 

·V!F BOOK 'f3 PAGE~ 

\~!TNESS my hand and official 5eal the day and yeac in 
this certificate first ubove written .... " .. . , 

ST ATE OF ALASKA . . SS 

Fourtn Judicial District ) 

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that on this ;). 6r;!_ day of Ft:{., V'-''• vt., 
1985, before rne, the undersigned, a Notary Public in and for 
Alaska, personally appeared John AQgiak, to me known and kno~n to 
me to be the E" ... , ... -~:.,,'i" e;~e, t-vrot the Orutsrarmuit Native Council I 
appearing in the foregoing instrument, and he acknowledged to me 
that he signed the same for and on behalf of said .g~aF1o~k 
freely and voluntarily and by authority of said corporation foe 
the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HAND and official seal the day and year 
last above written. 

STATE: Of' ALASKA. 

/:iJ,tA-cJ{ .. JUDICIAL DISTRICT 

w <:)_ . l,. I/, ·~- ·•· .~--v· ~ ... -.... ,)L·_,/
N6tary Public, State of·Alaska · 
My Commission EXP.ires: . ~/ ']/¥'~· 

) 

~yh-. . . 
) 

SS 

-r-4 Afou.e.ffl-
TH! S IS TO CERTIFY that on the ~'day~ 1985, before 

me, the undersigned, a Notary Pu lie in aod fa,r the State of 
Alaska 1 personally appeared .,_ . Z. /:!., ' , to me 
and known and known to me to be :o/'o . of the City 
of Bethel, appearin9 in the foregoing instrument, ana he/she 
acknowledged to me that he/she signed the same for and on behalf 
of said corporation, freely and voluntarily and by authority of 
said corporation for the uses and purposes therein mentioned. 

GIVEN UNDER MY HANO and official seal the day and year 
last above written. 

Ground Le:' · - 34 35



7-17-00; 2! 10PM;ORUTSARAMU1T 
;5432639 # 36 / 3 7 

···: :, 

BOOK ¥3 PAGE 35q 
BXflIBIT A 

; . 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

Commencing at the SW corner of Tract A of Block 9. 
u.s.s. 3770, Northwest Addition, Bethel Townsite, thence 
N 89 58' 28" E: a dis ta nee of 125 feet t .o tt\e true point 
of beqinning, thence N 00 40' 32" E a distance of 80 
feet, thence S B9 58 1 28" W a distance of 35 feet, 
thence N 00 40' 32" E a distance of 200 feet, thence N 
89 58 1 28" E a distance of 150 feet, thence s 00 40' 32" 
w a distance of 200 feet, thenca s 89 58' 2a~ W.a 
distance of 65 feet, thence S 00 40' 32" W a distance of. 
80 feet, thence S 89 58' 28" W a distance of ·50 feet to 
the true point of beginning. 

Gr:ouna r !,"lse - 3 5 
36



·-· 

7-17-00; 2: 10PM;ORUTSARAMUIT 

I 

2 

3 

tJ 00" ~. ~f' r;_ 

I~ (tti" 

AKIACHAK 

38 37 36 

;5432639 # 37/ 37 

~ ... -.... 
I 

.. - \ 

TRACT A 

,,:·:~ ... ; ;.1 BOOK J./.3 PAGE 3b1 
I• • .,.., 
., .... 

35 34 33 

TRAC: 

37



17-74
November 28, 2017
November 28, 2017 X

KM

Supporting Documentation for 
New Business Item A

38



39



Page 1 of 2 

Memorandum of Understanding 

Between the 

ORUTSARARMUIT  NATIVE COUNCIL 

and the 

CITY OF BETHEL 

PINKY’S PARK BOARDWALK LIGHTING PROJECT 

ARTICLE I. PURPOSE 

This Memorandum of Understanding (MOU) is entered into by and between the 
Orutsararmuit Native Council (ONC), and the City of Bethel (COB). The purpose of this 
Agreement is to utilize the ONC Tribal Transportation Program (TIP) construction funds 
as reimbursement to the City, for the purchase and installation of LED streetlights along a 
section of boardwalk in Pinky’s Park, which is in the community of Bethel, Alaska. 

The ONC and the COB each recognize responsibilities and interests in the establishment 
of cooperative relationships that meet the needs of both the Tribal and City governments. 

ARTICLE II. STATEMENT OF WORK 

In this Memorandum of Understanding, the Parties agree to the following: 

THE ORUTSARARMIUT NATIVE COUNCIL SHALL: 

1. Make Tribal Transportation Program funding available in an amount not to exceed
Eighty Nine Thousand Dollars ($89,000).

2. Reimburse the COB for actual costs and expenditures associated with this project
within ten (10) business days from receipt of invoices and/or receipts.

THE CITY OF BETHEL SHALL: 

1. Arrange for Alaska Village Electric Cooperative (AVEC) to complete the following
tasks:

a. Install utility poles at appropriate distances along the boardwalk from the
baseball diamond to Owl Park such that when the LED 120s are attached, the
section of boardwalk is lit sufficiently for safe pedestrian passage. Additional
utility poles may need to be installed in order to provide power to the poles to
be installed along the boardwalk. All poles installed are part of this project.

Supporting documentation for 
New Business Item B

40



Page 2 of 2 
 

b. Provide electric power to each pole that carries an LED 120 streetlight.  
 

c. Attach one City-provided LED 120 light to the top of each pole needed to 
provide light to the boardwalk.  

 
2. Complete the project by September 30, 2018 and provide ONC with all 

documentation regarding expenditures for “Pinky’s Park Boardwalk Lighting 
Project” no later than October 10, 2018. 

 
3. The City agrees that trail maintenance funds to be reimbursed by ONC will only 

have been used for allowable activities under TIP regulations, 25 C.F.R. Part 170, 
and applicable federal laws. 

 
ARTICLE Ill.  TERMS OF UNDERSTANDING DURATION OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
This Agreement shall take effect upon approval of all Parties and shall remain in effect 
until submission of final receipt and reimbursement thereof, unless it is terminated earlier 
as per the terms of this Agreement.   
 
REVISION OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
The terms of this MOU may be revised by mutual consent of all Parties, by issuance of a 
written amendment, signed and dated by the proper representative of each government. 
 
TERMINATION  OF UNDERSTANDING 
 
This Agreement may be terminated by either Party, with or without cause, upon ten (10) 
days written notice. Any expenses incurred prior to the termination notice shall be 
reimbursed, per the terms of this Agreement. 
 
ARTICLE IV.  EFFECTIVE DATE 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Bethel and the Orutsararmuit  Native Council, 
through their authorized representatives, execute this Agreement on dates set forth 
below. 
 
 
CITY OF BETHEL ORUTSARARMIUT NATIVE COUNCIL  
 
 
__________________________ _______________________________ 
Peter A. Williams, City Manager Ron Hoffman, Executive Director 
 
 
 
__________________________ _______________________________ 
Date Date 

41



42



43



44



45



46



47



.I Development 

Anchorage field office 

51 O L Street, 

Suite 410 

Anchorage, AK 
99501 

Voice 907-271-2424 

0 

USDA - United States Department of Agriculture 

May 9, 2016 

Ann Capela, City Manager 
City of Bethel 
PO Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 

SUBJECT: Sewage lagoon jetty/sewer haul trucks 
Wastewater Application 
Loan - $913,000 
Grant -$1 ,669,358 

Dear Ms. Capela: 

This letter establishes conditions which must be understood and agreed to by you before 
further consideration may t:Je given to your application. The loan and grant will be I 
administered on behalf of the Rural Utilities Service (RUS) by the Alaska staff of USDA 
Rural Development, of which is referred to throughout this letter as the Agency. Any 
changes in project cost, source of funds, scope of project, or any other significant changes in 
the project or applicant must be reported to and concurred in by the Agency by written 
amendment to this letter. If significant changes are made without obtaining such 
concurrence, the Agency may discontinue processing of the application. 

You must meet all conditions set forth under Section III - Conditions Required Prior to 
Advertising for Bids within 6 months of this letter. If you have not met these conditions, the 
Agency reserves the right to discontinue the processing of your application. 

If you agree to meet the conditions set forth in this letter and desire further consideration be 
given to your application, please complete and return the following forms within 30 days: 

Fonn RD 1942-46, "Letter of Intent to Meet Conditions" 
Fonn RD 1940-1 , "Request for Obligation of Funds" 

The loan and grant will be considered approved on the date Form RD 1940-1, "Request for 
Obligation of Funds," is signed by the approving official. Thus, this letter in itself does not 
constitute loan and/or grant approval, nor does it ensure that funds are or will be available 
for the project. Once the Form 1940-1 is signed and remitted back to the Agency, the 
request will be processed and the loan and grant funds will be approved and obligated. 

Extra copies of this letter are being provided for use by your engineer, attorney, bond 
counsel and accountant. All parties may access information and regulations referenced in 
this letter at our website located at www.rd.usda.gov. 

The conditions are as follows: 

USDA is an equal opportunily provider. employer. and lender. 

If you wish to file a Civil Rights program complaint of discrimination. complete the USDA Program Discrimination Complaint Form (PDF). 
folJfld onUne at http://www.ascr.usda.gov/complaint_filing_cust.html, or at any USDA office, or call (866) 632-9992 to request the form. 
You may also write a letter aintaining all of the infonnation requested in the form. Send your aimpleted complaint form or letter to us by 
mail at U.S. Department of Agriculture, Director, Office of Adjudication, 1400 Independence Avenue, S.W .. Washington, D.C. 20250·9410, 
by fax (202) 690-7442 or email at program.intake@usda.gov. 

-----

Supporting Documentation for New Business 
Item D, Water and Sewer Rate Increases 

48



9 

The City of Bethel must maintain and keep in place the ordinance that automatically increases the 
sewer rates by 3 percent on an annual basis. It is required that the ordinance be maintained, at least, 
through the 2018 rate increase. 

Technical assistance is available to help you evaluate and complete a rate analysis on your system. 
This assistance is available free to your organization. If you are interested please contact our office 
for information. 

22. Permits -The owner or responsible party will be required to obtain all applicable permits for 
the project, prior to advertisement for bids. The consulting engineer must submit written evidence 
that all applicable permits required prior to construction have been obtained with submission to the 
Agency of the final plans, specifications, and bid documents. 

23. Vulnerability Assessment/Emergency Response Plan <VA/ERP) -The Agency requires all 
financed water and wastewater systems to have a VA/ERP in place. Borrowers with existing systems 
must provide a certification that a VA/ERP has been completed prior to advertising for bids. The 
documents are not submitted to the Agency. For new systems, see Section V of this Letter of 
Conditions. For VA/ERP requitements throughout the life of the loan, see Section VII. Tecl\nical 
assistance at no cost is available in preparing these documents. 

24. Bid Authorization - Once all the conditions outlined in Section llI of this letter have been 
met, the Agency will authorize you to advertise the project for construction bids. Such advertisement 
must be in accordance with applicable State statutes. 

0 SECTION IV - REQUIREMENTS PRIOR TO START OF CONSTRUCTION 

25. Bid Tabulation - Immediately after bid opening, you must provide the Agency with (a) bid 
tabulation, and (b) your engineer's evaluation of bids and recommendations for contract awards. If 
the Agency agrees that the construction bids received are acceptable, adequate funds are available to 
cover the total project costs, and all the requirements of Section III of this letter have been satisfied, 
the Agency will authorize you to issue the Notice of A ward. 

Cost Overruns. If bids are higher than expected, or if unexpected construction problems are 
encountered, you must utilize all options to reduce cost overruns. Negotiations, redesign, use of 
bidding alternatives, rebidding or other means will be considered prior to commitment of subsequent 
funding by the Agency. Any requests for subsequent funding to cover cost overruns will be 
contingent on the availability of funds. Cost overruns exceeding 20% of the development cost at 
time of loan or grant approval or where the scope of the original purpose has changed will compete 
for funds with all other applications on hand as of that date. 

26. Contract Review - Your attorney will certify that the executed contract documents, 
including performance and payment, if required, are adequate and that the persons executing these 
documents have been properly authorized to do so in accordance with RUS Instruction l 780.6l(b). 

Once your attorney has certified that they are acceptable, the contract documents will be submitted to 
the Agency for its concurrence. The Notice to Proceed cannot be issued until the Agency has 
concurred in the construction contracts. 

49




